
REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

October 6, 2025 

PAGE85 

The Jasper County Commissioners met this date at 8:30 A.M. C.S.T at 910 S Sparling Ave., 
Rensselaer, Indiana with the following members present: Rein Bontreger, Craig Standish and Ryan 
Hilton. Also present were Auditor, Diana Boersma, Deputy Auditor, Cynthia Slaughter. Those 
present stood and recited the Pledge of Allegiance led by Mr. Bontreger. There was a brief moment 
of silence following the Pledge. 

MINUTES: Mr. Bontreger stated Commissioners minutes from 6/2/2025 have been corrected to 
reflect a change from a county park to a township park. Mr. Standish made a motion to approve 
the minutes from 6/2/2025 with the correction. Mr. Hilton seconded and the motion carried. Mr. 
Hilton stated he noted a minor correction on the 9/2/2025 minutes, he stated the minutes note Mr. 
Hearod and should read Ms. Hearod from Animal Control. Mr. Standish made a motion to approve 
the minutes from 9/2/2025 with the correction to change Mr. Hearod to Ms. Hearod. Mr. Hilton 
seconded and the motion carried. 

CLAIMS: Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the claims, as presented. Mr. Standish seconded 
and the motion carried. 

PAYROLL CLAIMS: Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the payroll claims with checks dated 
September 15th and September 30th, 2025. Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried. 

CORONER ANDY BOERSMA: Mr. Boersma was not present. Mr. Standish stated there were no 
updates from the Forensic Center Committee. 

SHERIFF WILLIAMSON: Sheriff Williamson stated he is presenting a service agreement with 
TRANE. He stated they have to come out and clean the coils because of dust and things to maintain 
it. He stated he is also presenting a service agreement for Tiggs for next year, this will be a 3 .9% 
increase in the cost which would be around $8,000 based on an average of 80 inmates. Mr. 
Bontreger stated he believes Attorney Beaver looked this over and recommended it. Mr. Standish 
made a motion to approve the updated TRANE service contract as presented by the Sheriff. Mr. 
Hilton seconded and the motion carried. Sheriff Williamson stated the Tiggs meal agreement is 
September to September. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the canteen services contract. Mr. 
Standish seconded and the motion carried. 

Sheriff Williamson stated they are applying for a grant to replace their fingerprint scanner. He 
stated they do not have all the information yet from the state and their scan machine is around 
$30,000. He stated they offer a grant to pay for the whole thing so it will be a replacement at the 
state's cost and the same maintenance cost of about $2,000/year. He stated this is the NEC Smart 
Scan. Mr. Standish asked what happens to the old one. Sheriff Williamson stated he does not know 
if they take that back or what happens to it but it is still functioning. Mr. Standish asked if that is 
something that the Coroner could potentially utilize. Sheriff Williamson stated he is not sure he 
would have the clearance to do that, he stated this is for people that are wanted and he would have 
to have an NCIC clearance. Mr. Bontreger asked does the Sheriff need approval from them or was 
he just informing them that they are going for it. Sheriff Williamson stated it has a contract 
involved in it with a maintenance fee so the State law says they have to get all the Sheriff contracts 
approved. He stated he also has to give the information to the Auditor for their records and he will 
fill that sheet out when they receive the information and get it to her. 

SheriffWilliamson stated the Surveyors were happy to get the F-350. He stated they found a couple 
other trucks that already had police lights in them, one with 8,000 miles, one with 17,000, nice F-
150's. He stated they will replace one for the F315, the other one will replace the K9 truck that 
lost its motor. He asked if anyone is interested in that 2019 Dodge truck, that it might be worth 
throwing a used motor in it. He stated it will be ready for auction. 

CLERK KARA FISHBURN: Ms. Fishburn was not present. Ms. Slaughter stated the JCEDO had 
come to Ms. Fishburn asking if there was anything with the courthouse logo on it that they could 
sell in the Welcome Center and Ms. Fishburn informed them that there was some stationary left 
that was sold during the centennial celebration. Mr. Standish stated it looks like a postcard and 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

October 6, 2025 

PAGE86 

CLERK KARA FISHBURN CONT'D: was nice. Ms. Slaughter stated they were previously sold 
for $10/pack and the Welcome Center would like to sell them and there are 10 or so packs left. 
Mr. Bontreger asked if the Commissioners wanted to give the green light to get some ordered and 
make them available to sell and sell the ones already available at the new Jasper County Tourism 
Welcome Center. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the stationary purchase and to sell them. 
Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried. 

RECORDER KIM GROW: Mr. Bontreger stated Attorney Beaver mentioned that this was pretty 
standard and should have no issues for the Commissioners to approve the purchase. He stated this 
is for the recorders e-image data microfilm scanners, total of$5,885. Mr. Hilton made a motion to 
approve the signing of the contract on behalf of Recorder Kim Grow. Mr. Standish seconded and 
the motion carried. 

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT MARY SCHEURICH: Ms. Scheruich stated she has 2 
rezones and an amendment to the UDO. She stated the first rezone she has was for Donna Hamstra. 
She stated Ms. Hamstra has 11.638 acres on State Road 10 and there are currently 2 houses on 
those acres. She stated Ms. Hamstra would like to remove one of the existing houses and rebuild, 
and in order to do that and make it compliant with the UDO she needs to rezone so she could do a 
2-acre parcel and leave the remaining with the other house. Ms. Scheurich stated there was 
unanimous approval of reco=endation on that one. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve this 
rezone with the favorable reco=endation from the Planning and Zoning Board. Mr. Standish 
seconded and the motion carried. 

Ms. Scheurich stated the next rezone is unique because the Plan Commission is the applicant. She 
stated there are 3 parcels that are surrounded by ag over on County Line Road 1200 West. She 
stated they are large tracts that were always allowed to have animals in the past and when they 
redid the UDO and the zone map they were zoned RI but when they redid the UDO they took the 
allowance of animals out of the RI zoning district so that made them non-compliant with the 
zoning code. She stated she does not know if they have animals at this time but they would like to 
be able to have, say, horses or something like that along the way. She stated they decided it is a 
cleanup of those 3 parcels because they are between 2 ag parcels and it does not make sense for 
them to be RI. She stated this was also another unanimous reco=endation of approval and that 
this is a rezone of an RI to an A2. She stated the A2 made the best sense based on the size of the 
lots. Mr. Standish made a motion to change the zoning to A2. Mr. Hilton seconded and the motion 
carried. 

Ms. Scheurich stated lastly, there is an UDO amendment to the right to farm, or adopting a right 
to farm. She stated they have always had a waiver in place and what they did was the Plan 
Commission decided to keep the language they had but reference the Indiana Code's right to farm 
statute within it. She stated this received a unanimous reco=endation for approval. Mr. 
Bontreger thanked Ms. Scheurich for streamlining it. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the 
resolution ordinance update for the UDO concerning right to farm as presented. Mr. Standish 
seconded and the motion carried. 

COUNTY FARM GROUND RE-BIDDING: Mr. Standish stated this is the last year of the 3-year 
optional lease for the county farm ground. He stated in the past it has been leased in conjunction 
with the airport authority's ground, whatever the county does the airport falls along. He stated he 
does not have the exact number but there are probably somewhere around 300, 330 acres total 
combined. He stated in the past it has been a sealed bid opportunity opened at a given date. He 
stated there has been discussion around that from the standpoint of the current leaser having the 
first right to refusal on the high bid. He stated this brings back the conversation of the high bidder, 
do they get a chance to re-bid. He stated to clean that up, the consensus has been this year to 
potentially go with a live auction. He stated they will get a public notice put together with Attorney 
Eric Beaver. He stated Attorney Beaver will have to go through the current leases, change the dates 
on them of when they take effect and when they end. He stated he does not think any of the property 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

October 6, 2025 

PAGE87 

COUNTY FARM GROUND RE-BIDDING CONT'D: has changed as far as acreage and then 
they will set a date and utilize this space to have a live auction and this will eliminate any need for 
first right of refusal. He stated the airport has had some changes in their property with what they 
have done out there to be able to facilitate the ground that they need for in the future. He stated 
those leases have been updated, by Emily, who is the airport authority. He stated the board is aware 
of it too and they are on board with doing the same thing. He stated he would like to make the 
recommendation to the Commissioners, if they so see it fit, that they put a clause in all these leases 
that, in order to be the award-winning leaser, you must be a Jasper County resident. He stated he 
and Mr. Hilton spoke about getting this knocked out as quickly as possible. He stated the current 
leases are November 1st and go from year to year. He stated if they could try to pull something off 
the 31st of this month, get them updated, get them posted so people can get them, get them to the 
Auditor's office if they want to pick them up there, and put it up for public notice and try to do 
something Friday October 31st at 5:00 or 5:30. Mr. Standish stated from his understanding they do 
not have to have an auctioneer do this, because it is county property and Attorney Beaver is the 
county attorney, Attorney Beaver can hold the auction. Mr. Hilton asked what the vetting process 
is going to be when it comes down to being a county farmer, is that based on the acreage you own 
in the county. Mr. Standish stated county resident. He stated they will have to prove that to be 
awarded the bidder and the leases already say that you can't sublease it. He stated the reason for 
this is that there was an issue years ago where some fertility issues were left at the end that were a 
cost to the county to get things back into position and they feel that there will be more care and 
stewardship if it is a county resident. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve that process and auction 
at the end of the month with the clause in there of being a county resident. Mr. Standish seconded 
and the motion carried. 

COUNTY ENGINEER JACK HABERLIN: Mr. Haberlin stated he has 3 permits today. He stated 
2 are with BSM Group and they have done many locations throughout the county with fiber optic. 
He stated these 2 locations are both in Keener Township. He stated one is along 700 West, north 
of Kapers subdivision, Blackthorn subdivision area and the other is along 1000 West, Lakota 
Drive. He stated they have been really good to work with and he does not see any problems. Mr. 
Bontreger asked if they have had any issues with this vendor. Mr. Haberlin stated no. He stated 
the other permit is with Gatlin Plumbing and they are going to bore under 1000 West by 114 and 
this is all to do with the city of Rensselaer bringing water out there. Mr. standish asked if they are 
all aware of the whole plowing or knifing issue. Mr. Haberlin stated yes and they even put in there 
no cutting the asphalt. Mr. Bontreger stated the one from Gatlin Plumbing, as he just referenced, 
going underneath County Road 1000 West, is part of the joint venture between the city and the 
county, extending utilities to the west side of Interstate 65. Mr. Standish made a motion to approve 
the Gatlin Plumbing directional boring permit. Mr. Hilton seconded and the motion carried. Mr. 
Hilton made a motion to approve the 2 boring permits signifying no asphalt cuts in Keener 
Township as recommended by County Engineer Jack Haberlin. Mr. Standish seconded and the 
motion carried. Mr. Bontreger stated he will acknowledge that they have had a few other people 
putting in fiber that they have had a few issues with and the county reached out to them. He stated 
there were a couple of instances where they were doing knifing and they got that corrected and 
resolved. 

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT ED CAIN: Mr. Bontreger stated the highway department is out 
working today so they will not hear from Mr. Cain today. Mr. Standish stated he spoke to him this 
morning and they are hoping to be finished up there today. Mr. Bontreger stated they have done 
great work this year as always. He stated there have been some patches that they have had to make 
due to some damage. Mr. Standish stated he did give him an update, Town and Country's working 
on their last CCMG project today, a subdivision in that area up there. He stated the county's 
working on theirs, they have some berm stone to put in after they get done with their paving and 
there is still hope that the weather holds out and they are able to get some stuff done in Carpenter 
Township, 2-3 miles by the end of the year. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

October 6, 2025 

PAGE88 

ARCEM SOLUTIONS ERIC GEORGE: Mr. George stated the lightning, when it hit the 
courthouse, it knocked out about 50 phones and so instead of replacing those phones, since they 
were in the process of replacing the phone system they put the new phones in. He stated the new 
vendor assigned some temporary numbers so they set the old phone system to forward calls to the 
new phone system. He stated there are a couple of feature codes so if you want to try to pick up 
somebody's else's line, it would work, but not in a consistent manner because when you type those 
codes in on the phone system it is trying to go to the old phone system to interpret that. He stated 
until they get cut over it won't be fully functional. He stated another issue they did have was calling 
out to 2 or 3 places and they worked with the vendor last Wednesday and got that resolved. He 
stated they are waiting on the port from the old phone system to the new carrier and they have up 
to 30 days from FCC regulations to be able to do that. Mr. Haberlin asked iflightning rods would 
kind of help the situation in the future. Mr. George stated from his understanding that lightning, it 
knocked out the circuit breaker on the generator and then it came in and knocked out the server in 
the IT room. He stated he thinks it goes to the path ofleast resistance and he would probably have 
to defer to Kevin about what grounding would look like for the building. There was further 
discussion on lightening rods. Mr. George stated the server warranty has a 4-hour replacement 
parts and once they confirmed with the vendor that the server had hardware issues and needed 
replaced they got those replaced that Monday night. He stated they got the data back online. He 
stated they honored the warranty and services. He stated the county has gotten 2 new controllers 
and a new chassis for where they store all the data, for the services, and this will help its life 
expectancy quite a bit. Mr. George stated in 2018 ARCEM signed an agreement to become Jasper 
County's IT partner and when they did that with the Commissioners at the time they agreed to do 
a 12-month commitment to make sure that they were a good fit for Jasper County and that Jasper 
County was a good fit for them. He stated they committed to not making any changes and starting 
to learn the environment in that first 12 months. He stated they then asked for a 36-month renewal 
and since then they have had another 3-year renewal. He stated they have had two 3-year renewals 
and a I-year renewal and they are asking for another 3-year renewal that would be effective 
January 1st of 2026. Mr. Bontreger stated that Mr. George and his company has been very 
responsive to our needs and the county has been upgraded and they have spread it out over time 
so it has not been one big hit. Mr. Hilton stated they also appreciate the timely response. Mr. Hilton 
made a motion to approve the 3-year contract renewal for ARCEM. Mr. Standish seconded and 
the motion carried. Mr. George stated the transition with the phones will be completed this month. 
He stated it is really just kind of moving from one carrier to the other now that all the phones are 
in place and they are all functional. He stated there is a 30-day window and once they get 
confirmation from the losing carrier that it is going to be ported over they will communicate that 
with all the users. 

COURTHOUSE PHONE OUTAGE: Mr. Bontreger stated when the phones were done some folks 
elected to use, or needed to use, their cell phones. He stated Mr. Hilton said he had a few people 
that had reached out to him about that. Mr. Hilton stated he did have a couple people reach out to 
him on that and had some consideration from others. He stated he thinks there are a couple of 
different ways they can look at it. He stated he thinks they need to go back to the handbook and 
rewrite the way that looks or at lease open that up to a handbook committee to see what the future 
of that looks like. He stated knowing that employees have use of their cell phone though the days 
of the week anyway, when you start to dictate what that looks like, and you start to return a stipend 
that gives more authority to those overreaching that, that are paying that bill for them, and then 
they get to restrict that a little bit more. He stated he would reference that back to the handbook 
committee and see what that looks like. He stated he would be very supportive if the Council had 
ever decided to eliminate that out of the budget as well. Mr. Bontreger asked for this particular 
event that happened are you suggesting that they don't need to do anything. Mr. Hilton stated 
correct. Mr. Bontreger and Mr. Standish stated they share this opinion. Mr. Bontreger stated it was 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

October 6, 2025 

PAGE89 

COURTHOUSE PHONE OUTAGE CONT'D: a little inconvenient but they all use their phones, 
he stated he uses his own phone and does not charge a stipend for it, that it would be more record 
keeping to have to deal with. He stated he does appreciate the question that was asked. Mr. George 
asked the Commissioners if they had a copy of the ARCEM contract. Mr. Bontreger stated they 
have it here and electronically as well. Mr. Standish stated he does not know when cell phones 
were put in the handbook but they have to look at the evolution of what has happened in cell 
phones and there was a time when they were paying for a minute package. He stated he thinks 
there was a time when the county would actually provide department heads with cell phones with 
a certain number on it. He stated he would say there is probably more time spent on cell phones, 
collectively, in a year, not on county business then there is for county business and he thinks it is 
something that is outdated. He stated he uses his all the time and he echoes Mr. Hilton's consent 
and he would support the idea of the handbook committee looking at striking that out, or the 
Council. Mr. Haberlin stated originally with cell phones all you could do was talk on them, there 
was no face. Mr. Bontreger stated that is a policy that needs revisited and looked at. 

COMMISSIONERS 2026 MEETING SCHEDULE: Mr. Hilton stated he thinks it looked good 
when he looked it over. Mr. Bontreger asked the second meeting in December are they thinking 
the 28th

. Mr. Standish stated if they do the 21st they could miss some stuff that the Auditors office 
needs and would the 28th be better. Auditor Boersma stated yes and they don't write checks in 
January so it would be a long stretch. Mr. Bontreger stated they would make that December 28th. 

Mr. Bontreger stated it would be Tuesday, January 6th, Monday February 3rd, Monday March 3rd
, 

Monday April 7th
, Monday May 5th, Monday June 2"\ Monday July 7th, Tuesday July 14th Joint 

Session with the Council at 5:00, Monday August 3rd, Tuesday September 8th, Monday October 
5th

, Monday November 2nd
, Tuesday November 17th Joint Session with the Council at 5:00, 

Monday December 7th, Monday December 28th. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the 2026 
meeting schedule as presented. Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried. 

COURTHOUSE TREE ESTIMATES COMMISSIONER STANDISH: Mr. Standish stated earlier 
this spring there were a couple of trees that were dead or dying and were removed from the 
courthouse lawn and at that time they were conversations with the Urban Tree Council on 
replacement and recommendation on what type of trees to replace them with. He stated he reached 
out to 3 different vendors in Jasper County for pricing on trees and tried to keep it as same as 
possible. He stated there were some updates made. He stated they had one very explicit bid that 
drew out everything that they were going to do and the other two bids were, you know. He stated 
he called back and asked to get that all spelled out. He stated he thought he brought it with him but 
he didn't but he does have the number. He stated they are a London planetree which is a hybrid 
sycamore, 3.5-inch diameter and a tulip poplar, 3-inch diameter. He stated theses are all burlap 
and bald-rooted, t-post stakes, watering bags with fertilizer, mulch of their choice, and long-term 
fertilizer for them, and placing. He stated they received a bid from Clark's Cutting Edge for 
$1,684.52 and BA Browns for $1,994.50. He stated to keep in mind that one might have a 4-inch 
tree, the other might have a 3.5, but the other trees a 2.5 so it is all relevant. He stated the last one 
was from Belstra Farm and Garden for $1,236.13 and that is a 4-inch London planetree and a 2-
inch tulip poplar, installed with mulch, staking, and fertilizer. He stated he would like to add that 
whoever does this, if they decide to do it, there are at least 6, and one of them are large, depressions 
in the courthouse lawn from previous tree removals. He stated he would like to have it done at the 
same time, have those filled in with black dirt and brought back up to grade, one for the mowing 
crew, and two, for the safety of people walking across the lawn. He stated there are numerous in 
the back and there are a couple on the northeast side that need to be done. He stated hopefully they 
will get some grass seed on and get it germinated and be good for next year. Mr. Bontreger asked 
how many trees did they take out. Mr. Standish stated they took out 2 trees, a big maple and a 
flowering dogwood or something that was back in the southeast comer. He stated the water line 
construction is over and it has not frozen yet. He stated he told the maintenance guys that they 
could put the flags where they wanted to mow around them and keep them away from the concrete 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

October 6, 2025 

PAGE90 

COURTHOUSE TREE ESTIMATES COMMISSIONER STANDISH CONT'D: so they don't 
have an issue like with the maple tree, and get them placed. Mr. Hilton stated just for transparent 
reasons, he is a current employee ofBelstra, he would like to abstain from this vote. Mr. Bontreger 
stated they have awarded some work to BA in the past and they currently work with them. He 
stated he does not know if they have yet worked with Clark's but they may have future opportunity 
with them. He stated if they go based on the lowest bid he would make the motion to approve the 
bid from Belstra. Mr. Standish seconded. Mr. Bontreger stated to keep things balanced the next 
time they have a chance maybe they could give a bit of preference to Clark's just so they can say 
that they spread it out. The motion carried with Mr. Hilton abstaining from the vote. 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT KAREN WILSON: Ms. Wilson was not present. Mr. Bontreger 
stated Ms. Wilson from EMA worked with them to put together a grant with the National Priority 
Grant Application for $150,000. He stated they chose to apply the grant towards a new generator 
that would run the entire courthouse which would cost a total of $206,800. He stated they received 
a bid from electrician Kevin Moore. He stated the current generator only runs and keeps the 
computer infrastructure going. He stated in conjunction with the council, they signed a support 
letter that said they would cover the difference, if awarded, of $56,800 to make sure that the project 
will go forward if they get the grant funds. He stated Ms. Wilson worked very quickly to get this 
in before the deadline, and Steve Jordan signed on behalf of the Council, and he signed on behalf 
of the Commissioners. Mr. Standish stated they will hear back about it in 4-6 weeks, that is what 
Ms. Wilson was told. Mr. Bontreger stated this will be a considerably larger generator and where 
it gets physically located is yet to be determined. He stated they would look to retask the current 
generator potentially across the street at the prosecutor's building. 

MERCURY FIBER: Mr. Hilton stated he texted Mercury Fiber and one of the representatives will 
not be attending the meeting. Mr. Hilton stated he has received many phone calls about that service. 
Mary Eddy a resident of Rustling Oaks-Wheatfield joined the meeting via Zoom. She stated she 
is disappointed that Mercury Fiber is not present to represent themselves and answer some 
questions. Ms. Eddy stated some things have been resolved, other things unresolved, so they 
continue to make process. She stated they understand its an easement but they are unhappy about 
the location of the installation, the look and feel of it primarily the big fluorescent 4-foot poles. 
She stated the placement of them is not grouped with other utilities for ease oflawn maintenance. 
She stated in their subdivision they maintain the easements and homeowners try to make low­
maintenance lawns and it is requiring weed whacking around those specific poles. She stated there 
is a homeowner that has potential concerns on damage to his sprinkler system and he has received 
limited response from them. She stated in their subdivision they have had several homeowners 
who have seen their poles disappear from their yards and he thinks there are about 7 that remain 
in their subdivision at this point. She stated she wants to make sure they have a path to continue to 
make progress, voice concerns, and have open communication. Mr. Hilton stated he has received 
permission for the representative that has been helping and handling a lot of these issues and she 
said he could share her number on the record, her name is Ramona Newsome and her contact is 
260-450-1622. He stated she is a direct line with Mercury Fiber and she has been out pretty 
consistently in Jasper County. Ms. Eddy stated she does not know if it is related but they have had 
several power outages with REMC, like, two a week since this, Mercury Fiber has been in their 
neighborhood. She stated again, she doesn't know that it is related. She stated they have also been 
wondering what their easement is, what is the measurement of the easement. She stated she 
understands it may be different on 231 versus a subdivision but they are not finding a hard and fast 
answer documented anywhere about what the easement is and where their property line land. She 
stated they have looked on Beacon and can visually see it with the satellite thing but that does not 
tell them where to measure it, how to measure it. Mr. Standish stated it should be on their deed, 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

October 6, 2025 

PAGE91 

MERCURY FIBER CONT'D: there are going to be 2 easements. He stated one will be a utility 
easement and commonly it is like 20 feet and then there is going to be a county easement whish is 
30-35 feet. Mr. Haberlin stated he believes in a modem subdivision those people own their lot and 
their property line stops at their lot and then from there on is the easements. Ms. Mary Scheurich 
stated it is a 60-foot right-of-way so 30 feet from the center of the road each way according to the 
thoroughfare plan and that is on their plat of subdivision. She stated to come in 30 feet from the 
center line. Ms. Eddy asked, the answer is that 30-feet from the center of the road is the easement 
right-of-way that they do not own and then their lot starts, correct. Ms. Scheurich stated yes, 
correct. Mr. Philip V allis joined the meeting via Zoom. Mr. V allis stated he has been incapacitated 
and is recovering from major surgery and their friend Mary voiced their concerns over this orange 
pole that is decorating their property and is very unsightly. He stated they have had a number of 
guests that have come by the house for visits and they ask what that pole is doing in the middle of 
their yard. He stated a lot of the poles have disappeared from their subdivision. He stated REMC 
did an excellent job. He stated they put the boxes near property lines between houses and they put 
the pole there and it is unobtrusive and does not bother the attractiveness of their house. He stated 
as you pass by you see these ugly poles standing there and it detracts. He stated people in this 
subdivision, like Mary said, take pride in their homes and their presentation. He stated he has called 
their office, they are in Michigan and a gentleman took down his information and said he was 
going to pass the information on and he would hear from a local representative directly. He stated 
he has not heard from anybody from this company. He stated his lawn service had to take and 
clean up trash in the yard that was left behind by these folks. He stated his other issue is that when 
the crew was here they were working on installing this system and he stopped and tried to speak 
with one of the people that he thought was in charge and he told them to please be careful that 
there is an expensive sprinkler system installed on this property and several others down the street. 
He stated he said to him in broken English, 2 feet down, 2 feet down. He stated he does not know 
if his point got across. He stated because of his incapacitation he could not energize his sprinkler 
system this year and he does not know if next year when he energizes it if he is going to have 
geysers in his yard. He stated he would appreciate anything the Commissioners can do to please 
get the post out of his yard so that his house presents the way he thinks it should present and the 
rest of the people in their subdivision present their homes. Ms. Eddy stated she will take the next 
step and call the representative that was provided to her. She stated she will work with Phil, and 
they have a neighborhood Facebook group chat, and let them know that they have a contact, and 
they can reach out to them as well. She stated they will continue to fight this on their own rather 
then wait for the meeting next month. She stated if they don't get resolutions they will be calling 
before that meeting and asking for additional assistance. Mr. Bontreger stated it might be a good 
idea to physically measure where the easement is and where the lot starts and that will help to 
delineate what is what and where it is at. Mr. V allis stated he can tell them right now that it is 
probably in the easement but what makes it unsightly is it is dead center in the easement where 
REMC installed posts on the property line between houses. Mr. Bontreger stated yes, put it in the 
comer where it wouldn't be right in the middle of the view, that makes sense. Mr. Vallis stated he 
has counted, on 1000 going East, 64 of those posts, they are placed all over. Ms. Eddy stated that 
is the other thing, they are concerned around, beyond Rustling Oaks, the sightlines of this 
installation and approach in our beautiful neighborhoods and whole community. She stated they 
chose to live in Indiana because they did not want to live in the city in a construction zone and it 
looks like a construction zone with all the fluorescent orange. She stated it is not aesthetically 
pleasing and obnoxious, honestly. She stated they need to reconsider the installation. She stated 
beyond that she has researched their price points. She stated they certainly all welcome high-speed 
internet and were happy with REMC coming in and that installation went smooth. She stated it 
went from about $40 to $50 for Century Link a month with poor service to excellent service with 
REMC at about $65 a month and they are all happy. She stated there are still underserviced or non­
serviced areas. She stated she has friends on 231 that still have no internet, no fiber internet options. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

October 6, 2025 

PAGE92 

MERCURY FIBER CONT'D: She stated let Mercury Fiber attack those areas and to leave them 
alone, is the first thing, and she says that kind of joking, but kind of serious. She stated the second 
thing is Mercury Fiber is charging $99 a month and that is just crazy. She stated she hopes they 
find it beneficial that they are spending all the money on this installation because REMC does have 
plans to service those areas. She stated those folks are just waiting in line and when they do 
Mercury Fiber will not get their $99 a month. She stated those neighbors will be probably 
switching over to REMC. She stated they want to support local vendors and they don't want to 
pay $99 a month for it. Mr. Bontreger stated all this fiber was awarded from the BEAD program, 
a grant program from the state and companies came in and would actually bid to be able to serve 
these underserved, quote, underserved areas. He stated the areas that the state determined or 
marked out is where they have to go they don't have the ability to pivot and change where they 
are going in the middle of things. Mr. Hilton stated he would defer a lot of those questions and 
comments back to Mercury and Ramona will help navigate and take care of that. Ms. Eddy asked 
if she is an actual employee. Mr. Hilton stated yes, she drives out here form Fort Wayne. 

CITY OF RENSSELAER FIRE CHIEF KENNY HAUN: Mr. Haun stated he would like to say 
thank you for the donation they received about a year ago. He stated they put it in the training 
tower and he provided them some statistics of where they are at since that time about a year ago. 
He stated they are scheduled into '26 now and there are 4 classes scheduled for '26 and he wanted 
to say thank you and he appreciates their support. Mr. Hilton asked what the average class size is 
for the trainings. Mr. Haun stated 30 and they can accommodate 3 5. He stated they had an academy 
class scheduled that was postponed and there were 58 in that class. He stated it was postponed and 
some of those students went to Valparaiso. Mr. Hilton asked if they are seeing an influx oflocal 
individuals coming in for the trainings. Mr. Haun stated the current class that they have going on, 
the furthest traveled student that he can think of is coming from Benton County, and they have one 
from either Lowell or the Hebron area. He stated the majority of the class, this class that is currently 
going on, and the hazardous material class going on, are from Newton and Jasper County. He 
stated the Firefighter 1 and 2 class started out with 28 and there are 22 in there now and the 
Hazardous Material class had 32 and there are 22 left. He stated some of that is due to being in the 
farming season and dropped out because of that. Mr. Bontreger stated regarding the burn ban it is 
active for 7 days. Mr. Hilton stated it will end on Friday. Mr. Standish stated they can renew it for 
one more 7-day period. 

JASPER COUNTY TRAILS MICHELLE LAGESTEE: Ms. Lagestee stated she is here today for 
a follow-up discussion regarding the 400 West site. She stated they want to work with the County 
and feel like improved spaces like this around the county will help increase the safety of activities 
that are already happening and also increase the quality oflife and the ease to utilize natural spaces. 
Ms. Sara De Young stated Attorney Beaver had some concerns about the access point. She stated 
she is here representing tourism and the work that they have done with the trails to get them started 
and she feels like this is a really easy win. She stated the county already owns that property, they 
have already worked with partners to finance, getting an access point there, and how that would 
look to operate. She stated she knows there are still concerns which should be addressed and they 
are looking to continue to move forward and have those conversations. Mr. Hilton stated he has 
vocalized numerous times that he is very supportive of their efforts. Mr. Bontreger stated Attorney 
Beaver was going to look into the liability of either gifting it, leasing it, or whatever, making sure 
it is maintained, cleaned up, mowed, whatever. Mr. Hilton stated and then we would still have to 
retain the right-of-way. Mr. Vince Urbano stated they had a Kankakee River Basin Commission 
meeting last Thursday and he brought this up and they were all very supportive of the idea. He 
stated it sounded like if they, Jasper County Trails, would approach them for some financial things 
they might even be supportive of that and cost sharing with the county. Mr. Bontreger stated if 
they could get a recommendation from that board to the Commissioner's that would help. Mr. 
Urbano stated he spoke to the board for them, and they have been in communications with some 
things on emails and stuff so he brought it forward but Scott and the rest of the board were very 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

October 6, 2025 

PAGE93 

JASPER COUNTY TRAILS MICHELLE LAGESTEE CONT'D: interested. He stated they 
realized the need to have something in the middle there between Dunns Bridge and Lake County 
Parks. He stated they sounded like they were very supportive of it and they would even be 
supportive of cost sharing, jumping in and helping the county, wherever they might need it as well. 
Mr. Bontreger stated they will circle back with their legal counsel but if some of those points could 
get concluded and presented to the Commissioners then maybe this is something they can get them 
actually moving on next year. Ms. Lagestee stated Scott Pelath is part of that team and he has 
verbalized everything Vince is saying, they are very supportive. Mr. Urbano stated they are in the 
process of putting up the signs on bridges. He stated they were purchased with the previous 
commission and they are going to put them all on soon. He stated they are in case of an emergency, 
on all the bridges, the river side of the bridge, contact numbers of the local authorities in case you 
are in trouble, and location points so they can find you. He stated every bridge will have that on it. 
He stated the signs will be epoxied on to help the paddlers and the people using the river. Ms. 
De Young stated it sounds like they have a preliminary yes. Mr. Bontreger stated they have 
consensus to keep moving forward. Ms. De Young stated Tourism will help put together a package, 
bringing together all the partners and finance/potential financing of getting this done, and then also 
kind ofleave an area for legal review. Ms. Lagestee stated the Indiana Code for Recreational Use 
Statue is 14-22-10-2 and then the one regarding the public waterways, those being navigable, 
which the Kankakee is on of them, is Indiana Code 14-29-1-8. 

JASPER COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY EVIE PARRISH: Mr. Bontreger stated the previous 
board appointee that they had appointed has resigned and that was Kayla DeJong. He stated they 
have spoken with Janet Umlauf, who was a previous board member, and she is willing to fulfill 
this term. He asked if there were any other nominees. Mr. Hilton made a motion to appoint Janet 
Umlauf to the Jasper County Library Board. Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried. Ms. 
Parrish stated Kayla still had 2 years on her term so this would complete that term. 

KANKAKEE TOWNSHIP LOUIE KETCHUM: Mr. Ketchum stated they will be advertising the 
bids this Thursday, the bid review will be October 27'1', and the opening of the bids on October 
30th . He stated his question is, with the township that they had budgeted money for this, that they 
have to encumber with the state to make sure they can still use the funds, and he does not know 
how that works with the money they gave them. He stated he does not know if they have to 
encumber it or if they have to come back again in January and re-ask for it. He stated they, as a 
township, just have to do paperwork and they just encumbered that its going through a second year 
of the project and they will be using those funds that were appropriated this year in the next year. 
Mr. Bontreger stated they haven't actually given them the money so he would say it probably just 
stays in the fund and since it didn't get appropriated this year they will just re-appropriate it next 
year. Mr. Ketchum stated some of the money may be used this year, they may have half the 
foundations in by this year so they will be using some. Mr. Bontreger stated if you present a draw 
this year then whatever is left they would just appropriate next year. Mr. Ketchum stated the 
electric is in, there was a bit of a holdup waiting for the guy to bore underneath the blacktop. He 
stated he finally got it done and the electric is in. 

OTHER BUSINESS: 

HEALTH DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATOR KRISTEN LOUCK: Mr. Bontreger stated Ms. 
Louck is bringing a recommendation from the Jasper County Board of Health Dr. Louck Jasper 
County Health Officer. Ms. Louck stated Dr. Louck said that they have completed the process of 
evaluating candidates for the Health Administrator position, which supervises and oversees the 
administrative functions for the health department delegated by the Health Officer, which is Dr. 
Louck, and it is the recommendation of the Health Officer and the Health Board that the County 
Executive accept Kate Barrett as their recommendation to fill the position. Mr. Bontreger stated 
they have had extensive conversations with Dr. Louck, Kristen, and Kate and a few things got 
cleared up. He stated Kristen, with her nursing degree has done a lot of hands-on, and in 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

October 6, 2025 

PAGE94 
HEALTH DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATORKRlSTEN LOUCK CONT'D: conjunction with 
the health officer, but obviously with her medical training oversaw a lot of things and took the 
initiative on many things. He stated they thank her for that. He stated they have heard Dr. Loucks 
recommendation from the Health Board. He stated he would be in favor of accepting his 
recommendation he passed to them from the Health Board. He stated the only pending topic would 
be, which he suggests that they have to go to the Council, as far as, what the compensation is. He 
stated he knows she recommended that to them but that will be a conversation between the Council 
and the Health Board in regards to that. Mr. Hilton made a motion to accept, on behalf of Dr. 
Louck and the Health Board, Kate Barrett as the new Health Department Administrator. Mr. 
Standish seconded and the motion carried. Kate Barrett stated she is thankful for the opportunity 
and is looking forward to get started and learn the whole new process. Mr. Bontreger stated just 
for reference you have been a field tech in the health department right. Ms. Barrett stated she has 
been doing restaurant inspections, has been out with Jordan and done some septic's and wells, and 
learned how to do the birth and death certificates, things like that already at the health department. 
Ms. Louck stated they have a request to fill the field tech position and she would like to get that 
started today because it is part of the HFI funding and that they have to have an advertisement for 
30 days. Mr. Standish stated are they going to get a scope over to Holly and get it put on Indeed. 
Ms. Louck stated in the past they have posted it on their Facebook page and on the county's 
webpage and they have received applications through that process. She stated if they want it on 
Indeed that is fine that they will just need to figure out how to notify the candidates as they go. 
Mr. Standish stated if they get the requirements in there that it might screen out some, they have 
to live in Jasper County or be willing to relocate in a certain amount of time. He stated there are 
so many people now that do not look at a website, they go to Indeed or a hiring service of some 
sort. Mr. Bontreger stated they are trying to get a repeatable process and he would say specify your 
stipulations and that will screen out anybody who's automatically not eligible. Mr. Standish made 
a motion to start the process for their 30-day posting of Kates backfill. Mr. Hilton seconded and 
the motion carried. 

ASSESSOR DAWN HOFFMAN: Ms. Hoffman stated it is time to renew the Pictometry contract. 
She stated this is the aerial photography that her office uses numerous hours a day to try and get 
good assessments. She stated she spoke with Aaron in the Surveyor's office and he is supportive 
of the plan. She stated Mary from Planning and Development also uses this program a lot. She 
stated in the past they have done 2 flights over 6 years, so every 3 years, they are getting updated 
imagery. She stated she found out that the state does Orthos, which are only the straight-down 
pictures and they can get those for free. She stated they have the opportunity to get updated imagery 
every 2 years with the plan that she has in place. She stated she is proposing doing 3-inch 
countywide so it is better imagery, and when they are working on these big projects that are coming 
they will be able to see better what is going on in these parcels. She stated the one issue with '26 
is that '26 is the last year that they will pay for the current aerials and that has already been 
budgeted in the Economic Development Fund and is one of the Commissioners line items and that 
is $35,000, that is for the last payment. She stated so the first payment, if they could go ahead and 
fly next year, that is what she is asking, is do they get a new flight for next year. She stated they 
can pull that out of the sales disclosure fund, there is enough money in there and that fund can only 
be used in certain circumstances, and this is eligible to be used there so they can pull out of that 
and it will pay for that whole amount for that year. She stated she has outlined a pay schedule, how 
it would be going forward. She stated she does not have the contract in hand yet, he is still working 
on putting it together. She stated I can get that to you or do you want it to go to Attorney Beaver 
first. Mr. Bontreger stated she can have Attorney Beaver review it. He stated they can certainly 
give her a resolution that they are in support of it so she should move ahead with it. Mr. Bontreger 
stated they pay for one of the flights, are the state ones available in the off years. Ms. Hoffman 
stated the state flies every 4 years so their next flight is in 2028. She stated she provided a 9-year 
schedule and Pictometry will not hold them to this exact schedule, if they find they need to move 
some flights around, they can do that. She stated it just locks in the price for what flights they do 
want to fly. Mr. Haberlin stated the guardrail on Bridge 66, is going well. He stated they have 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

October 6, 2025 

PAGE95 

COUNTY ENGINEER JACK HABERLIN: notified the contractor to start. He stated he believes 
the three grants that they have, signing, marking, the trail combination thing, they are moving 
ahead. He stated with Bridge 88 and 1000 West Jake with Kimley Hom stated he can recap a little 
bit about what was provided at last months meeting related to Bridge 88. Jake stated they provided 
5 options but really 2 that kind of boiled up to the surface with respect to one option that was a full 
span over the existing ditches there and the other one was a 2-bridge option. He stated he thinks at 
the conclusion of the conversations the single span option was the direction that the 
Commissioners thought made the most sense. Mr. Standish asked if they wanted to pursue the 
single span operation that did not involve moving the ditch, it was going over everything, what are 
the engineering fees for that, if they wanted that preliminary drawn up to put out the bid what are 
they looking at. Jake stated he did not bring all that with him and he thinks that was in the ballpark 
of$300,000 for everything ifhe recalls correctly, including permitting. He stated there was a little 
bit of ditch realignment there as it comes together. Mr. Bontreger stated it was like $300,000 or 
$330,000, something like that. Jake stated he thought the overall construction estimate was in the 
ballpark of $2 million on that. Mr. Standish stated the other option with multiple bridges was 
higher. Mr. Bontreger asked what would be an ideal timeline when he would need a decision from 
them. Jake stated that is really theirtimeline. He stated if there is a desire to get the work completed 
at a specific time of year, there's going to be permitting required, and some right-of-way as well 
and he would count on no less them 12-18 months to get through that process of design, permitting, 
and right-of-way acquisition. He stated if they were looking to have construction start in the spring 
or around a planting season that would dictate when they would want to have a decision to move 
forward. Mr. Standish stated a job like this 8 months, 12 months to complete. Jake stated on 
construction season and he thinks 6 to 8 months is fair to say. Mr. Bontreger stated so they can try 
to tear it out after planting and in before harvest. Mr. Standish stated there are multi-different crops 
that are out there that the harvest and planning season are not in line with just soybeans. Mr. Hilton 
stated you are going to create a displacement no matter what. Jake stated there is likely going to 
be a detour for some period of time and if they can minimize the impact to the harvest or planting 
they will attempt to do that but there will probably be some amount of impact. Mr. Haberlin stated 
as far as the cost goes, looking at bridge 1002, hopefully it will be completed really soon. He stated 
it was a grant project so that spreads it out longer but probably engineering wise on that bridge it 
was over $100,000 and that was not a complete bridge project. Jake stated the main difference is 
the federal aid process is a much more involved project development process. He stated the county 
has traditionally done as much as they can using local funds though the Cum Bridge Fund to 
minimize the amount of soft costs on projects like this where it can be afforded because it is less 
expensive locally than it is through a federal aid process. Mr. Bontreger stated they need to come 
up with what they would like to do relatively soon so they can get this process started. Mr. Standish 
asked if anyone has a rough estimate of what is in the Cum Bridge Fund. Mr. Bontreger stated it 
was included in their packet, the fund balances. Mr. Haberlin stated he does not get the packet and 
would like to get it. Mr. Bontreger stated Mr. Haberlin will be included in the email so that he gets 
the packet. Mr. Standish stated he thought the number was around $800,000. Mr. Bontreger stated 
he thought it was like $845,000 or $875,000. Mr. Bontreger stated based on what they know of 
our other needs for bridges if they pay the $300,000 out of that is that going to stain them for other 
projects. Mr. Haberlin stated they do have 3 more that they could look at, maybe this one comes 
first. He stated this is something they can analyze because there was always $2 million in there. 
Mr. Bontreger asked Auditor Boersma if this is something she can look into for them because he 
feels like they had moved some rate out of that to a different line several years ago with the 
agreement with the council at the time that is the Commissioner needed to move some rate back 
to that Cum Bridge Fund they could do that. Jake stated the CCMG application was submitted last 
week, well ahead of the October 31st deadline. Mr. Standish asked if there is any timeline on when 
bridge 66 is going to be done. Jake stated it is 4 days of work weather permitting. He stated he 
thinks they needed 10 days after notice to proceed, which they just got, so middle of October, no 
later would be the date they are looking at. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

October 6, 2025 

PAGE96 

MAINSTREET RENSSELAER STACE PICKERING: Mr. Pickering stated he wanted to say 
think you for the use of the courthouse. He stated Oktoberfest went great. He stated there are some 
holes in that comer by the gazebo that he is sure maintenance knows about that are some pretty 
good indentations in the land. He stated he is hoping he will be back at the next meeting with 
information about the presentation for the laser lights on the courthouse. 

BF&S CIVIL ENGINEERS CARPENTER WIND FARM: Brandon with BF&S stated bridge 
1002 in Remington, depending on some utility locates, potentially could be open by the end of this 
week worst case probably next week. He stated it looks like they are going to hit that original 
construction budget even though they added in the reconstruction of that abutment. He stated 
Carpenter Wind is almost at the halfway point as far as the erection of the turbines. He stated he 
thinks they have about 21 of them done out of the 44 and it looks like they are going to hit their 
schedule. He stated they ran into some issues with the designated routes. He stated Mortenson's 
done really well with that last few months, until, earlier this month it was a concrete pour day and 
a bunch of IMI trucks went off the course, they caught everything on cameras. He stated both he 
and Ed Cane reached out to IMI to reinforce the designated routes and were planning on just 
keeping it as a warning hoping things would proceed smoothly and unfortunately, they did not. He 
stated right now, since then, they have had about 30 violations for sure. He stated they started a 
conversation with Mortensons whether they are going to assess fines or actually have them go out 
and do a bunch of road repairs on behalf of the county. He stated there is a lot of patching, some 
wedge and leveling that needs to be done at 1400 so they might do a swap there. He stated that 
was until last week where they picked up 73 triaxles. He stated they had a brief conversation with 
Mortenson's and they are denying it was their trucks and they are looking into it right now and 
that will dictate whether they just take a check or actually take the road repairs. Mr. Bontreger 
stated he wanted to say that Brandon has done a great job of overseeing this and being the 
construction compliance monitor and they have been able to divert some questions. He stated he 
has directed some questions to the hotline and it is going well and he appreciates Brandon's 
diligence. Mr. Standish stated he took a message Saturday evening from someone who said they 
were running late getting home and leaving for an appointment, came across 980 West just south 
of 1800. He stated they said they typically go out that way to go south to the county line to avoid 
the construction roads and then they closed it yesterday afternoon. He stated they said mountains 
of sand was there to move a crane across with no forewarning. Mr. Standish stated that is one of 
the roads that they came back and negotiated with the Commissioners this year to move the cranes 
across. He asked if there is a way to make them notify/post it 3 or 4 days ahead of time so people 
who are commonly using that route can see that that road is going to be closed on or before this 
date to this day. Brandon stated they could probably add in the notification, as of right now, they 
set up barriers at the intersections. He stated it is usually a short closure, about a day or so. 

Mr. Bontreger stated they have some other business before they get to public comment and if they 
run into 11 :00, they have to have a public haring for the drainage board but they may be wrapped 
before that but if not, they will have to take a pause. 

RENSSELAER CITY MAYOR JEFF PIDLLIPS: Mayor Phillips stated there are several projects 
that they are working closely with the Commissioners on, and it is nice to see some sidewalk 
construction beginning this morning. He stated it may be time that they have some type of 
executive session that the Commissioners attend so they can get 2 or 3 of these projects and get an 
understanding on what direction they want to go and then the city will get the direction they want 
to get going on these projects. He stated he has some time next week for them to advertise it. He 
asked if they were able to do something around the 15th or so. Mr. Bontreger stated as far as he 
knows he would be able to attend the 15th . Mayor Phillips stated to let him know if day or night is 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

October 6, 2025 

PAGE97 

RENSSELAER CITY MAYOR JEFF PHILLIPS CONT'D: better and he will get it advertised. 
Mr. Standish stated he would prefer late afternoon or evening. Mayor Phillips stated they will 
shoot for 5:00. He stated it will be on the 15th at 5:00 and he will get it advertised and they will 
meet at City Hall. Mayor Phillips stated that Bryce Black was here to give an update on the I-65 
project, in reference to pay. Mr. Black stated when they came before the Commissioners for the 
construction portion on the I-65 project they had mentioned to get the remaining balance brought 
before the Commissioners in December. He asked is that still where they want to be or do they 
want to try to shoot for that in November. He stated with the aggressive nature of the contractor 
he does not know if December would line up with where they are at and they have already put in 
a pay app for close to a million dollars on that first draw on the construction side of the county's 
funds. Mr. Bontreger stated that is something they can look into. Mayor Phillips stated they will 
be talking about the pavilion, trail, and probably the TIF area too. Mr. Bontreger stated the pavilion 
will be a joint project built on county property, paid for with grant funds and they need to look into 
a shared agreement as far as responsibility with Attorney Beaver and Attorney Sammons. 

VS ENGINEERING TIM: Tim stated they had the pole concern on 900 and 500 that has been 
relocated. He stated they had an on-site visit to make sure everything was in compliance, and 
everything appears to be moving forward accordingly. He stated it has been moved further away 
from the road, which has made it a safer intersection because it was very close and adjacent to the 
roadway. He stated they did receive a concern from them all about the lighting last week. He stated 
they did go out at night and investigated it and coordinating with the developer that was a one-off 
incident which will occur again but they will notify them in advance which they will then relay to 
the Commissioners. He stated they have since received their specifications on that lighting which 
will allow them to verify it is in compliance with the ordinance and they have directed them to 
ensure that the lighting is directed downward compared to what it was. He stated the issue was that 
there was a van with lights out there for supplement compared to what is normally out there so that 
is why there was the issue, that won't be out there until they are notified. He stated lastly, they 
have the upcoming site visit and they are planning on including the county and some of the 
department heads to go out also, tour the site with the developer, and visit and see everything 
firsthand. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

HANS MARKLAND: Mr. Markland stated he is a farmer, landowner, in the north end of the 
County. Mr. Markland stated the contracts with the solar farm and Mercury Fiber, the solar farm 
is a disaster. He stated they suffer from dust on County Road I 000 North and 49. He stated this 
thing of spraying water once a week lasts about 30 minutes to an hour and they need something 
for dust control. He stated with Mercury Fiber the farmers were left out of that. He stated they put 
a junction box at the entrance of his field. He stated our farmers should have been consulted before 
they put the fiber in. He stated nowadays, most of the farmers are using semi-tractors and trailers. 
He stated they have to put a parking pad in when they use machinery that big. He stated there was 
no consulting with the farmers about putting the fiber in and that fiber is going to be a problem in 
the future especially on drainage. He stated the Commissioners need to do a better job on that 
because they are possibly going to lose their home rule. He stated he found an article on the internet 
that said Indiana Energy Secretary Susie Jaworski told a closed-door audience Tuesday with the 
big electrical companies that the state has to do something about the recent wave of local bans on 
renewable energy. He stated, her comment was, "personally, I think those companies should start 
suing the communities and get serious about it." Mr. Markland stated that is our rights right there, 
one of them is water rights, and these big artificial intelligence centers take a huge amount of 
water. He stated the farmers replenish the water table and the towns and the cities do not. He stated 
they sell the water out of town and the farmers replenish the water. He stated they have seen that 
water problem from the LEAP project in Lebanon, they had to go a county or 2 away to get water. 
He stated one thing we should do is preserve our water rights. He stated he has irrigation and he 
does not want to see a big corporation come in and take away his water rights. He stated he thinks 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

October 6, 2025 

PAGE98 

HANS MARKLAND CONT'D: that farmers, they have to preserve their water rights. He stated 
another tlung is County Road 900 North and 49 East to 300 East, then down to 850 North all the 
way to Route 421 has become a major cross thoroughfare, a major highway. He stated they have 
a big solar project going on in Pulaski County with 200 and 300 cars a day parked over there. He 
stated they cut across on that road to go to 49, to 231, then on to 65. He stated there is a lot ofhigh­
speed traffic and they need a centerline stripe, edge striping and new passing stripes on that road. 
He stated it has become a very major high-speed highway and for the farmers that is a nightmare 
and now you have got the hunter traffic but presently there is no traffic control at all on that. He 
stated with the solar and Mercury Fiber project he never saw anybody from the county come out 
and monitor that to see if they have done it by the agreement. Mr. Bontreger stated Mercury Fiber 
was an agreement with the State, County had notlung to do with that. He stated the State awarded 
it and they are coming in. He stated that is why they have been pushing back on how they have 
been putting in some of their fiber right over the top of REMC or interacting with that. He stated 
Mercury Fiber was not something they entered into a contract with. He stated that was all from the 
State BEAD program where these third parties came in and are trying to get fiber out to 
underserved areas. He stated he agrees they should consult with farmers. Mr. Markland asked then 
if they are blocking your fields with it do you go downstate. Mr. Bontreger stated yes, you would 
want to talk to your representative about some of that. He stated, in regards to your concern about 
water rights, they are actually in the process of engaging with a company to give them a complete 
aquifer management study for the entire county. He stated this way they can determine where the 
water is, what the recharge and capacities are so that they have some data before they start 
developing projects so they know where it is appropriate and where it is not. Mr. Markland stated 
he commends them on that and it is a good idea. He stated people around here don't realize what 
water rights are but out west, you can't drill a well out there in some states like Colorado without 
a permit so we have to protect the water rights for the farmers. He stated the farmers, the farm 
landowners, are very important, and they are overlooked downstate. He stated the Energy 
Secretary, her comments about that scares him. Mr. Bontreger stated they have tried to be a county 
that is balanced in their approach and they do not have moratoriums and bans because they 
recognize that if they are not reasonable in how they handle these developments they will take that 
away from them at the state level. He stated they have been lobbying and advocating to be able to 
keep improving here as they have a balanced approach, they do not want to be dominated by any 
one particular sector but they recognize that you do have to embrace some developments but in a 
reasonable way and do it in a way that does not ruin your resources. Mr. Markland stated he is not 
against the energy projects. He stated he has been approached by 4 or 5 of those companies to sign 
up his farms and he did not do it. He stated the contracts are deceptive, they are very difficulty to 
interpret. He stated most of them have a confidentiality clause in them and there is one reason for 
confidentiality clause, after you give away your farm they do not want you to warn your neighbors 
and say hey I made a mistake. Mr. Bontreger stated when a landowner asks me what they should 
do he tells them to get a lawyer, read the agreement, and then counteroffer aggressively don't just 
take what they offer. Mr. Markland stated he counteroffers and they don't come back. Mr. 
Bontreger stated when someone who takes time to actually look into what the ramifications could 
be long-term it is important to make sure that you do your homework. Mr. Markland stated the 
average person cannot understand those contracts, even some attorneys can't they are so complex. 
He stated one tlung is to negotiate a paved road instead of using a gravel road, they need some 
help on dust control on 1000 North, it is just intolerable. He stated a water shot once a week does 
not control the dust, they need some type of oil-based project and they need to inform the sheriff 
that there are speed limits under that agreement. He stated the sheriff did not even know about that 
because 2 or 3 months ago a neighbor of his called the sheriff about the speeding dump trucks and 
the sheriff said the speed limit is 55. He stated the agreement says otherwise but apparently that 
agreement is not being passed off to other people like the law enforcement. He stated he would 
like to commend them on the water study. Mr. Bontreger stated they are just at the beginning stages 
of it but they are going to be able to pull it together for the Commissioners from relevant data that 
has been collected over the past 25 year. He stated then if they need to do more of a model of a 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

October 6, 2025 

PAGE99 

HANS MARKLAND CONT'D: certain area they can also look into that. l\1:r. Markland stated he 
knows a bit about water he has 4 or 5 irrigation wells. He stated the aquifers up in the north end of 
the county are unique to Indiana so you have to understand that the Kankakee Aquifer is difficult 
and a lot of people don't know about it. 

VS ENGINEERJNG TIM: Tim stated he wanted to address the Pulaski County solar projects. He 
stated they are compliance monitors out there as well and he wanted to give an update on their 
schedule as they have got the Mammoth project under construction now. He stated they are still 
planning to move into next year and they will be working out there all year. He stated also, next 
year, starting late spring, the other 3 projects will be starting as well. He stated like the previous 
comments about the traffic along 900 being high now he would anticipate it to increase and he 
wanted to make them aware to analyze it and adjust accordingly. l\1:r. Standish asked what dust 
control is outlined for Zelestra, is it just water or does it state something about calcium chloride. 
Tim stated they have been in coordination with them on getting the calcium chloride out there, 
they have not done so for some time for numerous reasons and they continue to push for that to be 
done. He stated it doesn't just specify water and they continue to coordinate with them and are 
trying to get that out there. l\1:r. Standish asked but it doesn't specifically specify calcium either. 
Tim stated no it does not specify it. l\1:r. Hilton stated they are going the cheapest route possible. 

There being no further business, l\1:r. Standish made a motion to adjourn the meeting, l\1:r. Hilton 
seconded and the motion carried. 

ATTEST: 

Rein Bontreger, President 

Diana Boersma, Auditor of Jasper County 


